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13 May 2021 
 
Our Reference: SYD18/01322/48 
Departments Reference: SSD 9522 
 
 
Bianca Thornton 
Industry Assessments 
Department of Planning and Environment 
GPO Box 39 
SYDNEY NSW 2001 
 
 
Dear Ms Thornton, 
 
SECTION 4.55 (2) MODIFICATION TO PROPOSED WAREHOUSE & LOGISTICS HUB 
657-769 MAMRE ROAD - KEMPS CREEK - SSD 9522-MOD 1 
 
Reference is made to the Department’s referral dated 28 April 2021 with regard to the 
abovementioned State Significant Development Application (SSDA), which was referred to 
Transport for NSW (TfNSW) Services for comments.  
 
TfNSW notes that the modification seeks consent to modify the existing SSD 9522 Development 
consent to enable the following:  

 Stage 1 Subdivision Plan:  
o Amendment to Lot 1; 
o Increase in the size of the easements; 
o Construction of a slip lane to facilitate access into Lot 5;   
o Amendment to the internal access road, which was approved as a 30.7 m wide 

access road to Lots 5-8, for which will be amended to 24 m wide to Lots 5, 6 & 8.  
 Stage 2 Subdivision Plan:   

o Amendment to Lot 5, 6, 8 & 10; 
o Removal of Lot 7;  
o Amendment to the site area of the Public Access Roads;  
o Amendment to the site area of the Southern Link Road.  

 Masterplan:   
o Increase in overall GFA across the Site from 162,355 m2 to 186,123 m2;  
o Increase in overall car parking from 744 spaces to 772 spaces;  
o Decrease in the site area of the public access roads from 58,490 m2 to 55,381 m2;  
o Reduction in the length of the cul-de-sac traversing to the north. 

 
TfNSW has reviewed the submitted documentation and provides the following comments to the 
Department: 
 
Amendments to Lot 1 

1. Comment 
TfNSW notes that the modification includes an amendment to Lot 1, comprising an increase 
in Site Area from 680,972 m2 to 684,083 m2. TfNSW would not support any changes to Lot 
1 until Condition B18 of the development consent has been adequately addressed and the 
required changes are supported by TfNSW. 



 
 
Recommendation 
In this regard TfNSW suggests that any modification to Lots 1-4 is removed from this 
Modification application until such time as condition B18 has been adequately addressed 
and the changes are supported by TfNSW. 

 
Freight – permitted vehicle 

2. Comment 
TfNSW requests that DPIE replace all references in the draft Mamre Road DCP from “26m 
long B-double (PBS level 2 type B)” with “30m PBS Level 2 Type B”.  
 
This is in line with the NSW Heavy Vehicle Access Policy Framework which identifies 30m 
PBS Level 2B Vehicles as the next PBS vehicle to be permitted wider access on NSW 
roads. 
 
Recommendation 
TfNSW requests rewording Condition A6(d) to the following: “the largest vehicle permitted 
to access the site is a 30m PBS Level 2 Type B”. 

 
Public Transport – Bus planning 

3. Comment 
There are no bus planning issues with the development, however as it is off a bus route, 
there should be provision for a bus turning area to enable buses to extend down to the site. 
 
Recommendation 
It is requested that the applicant be conditioned to provide provision for a bus turning area 
to enable buses to extend down to the site. 
 

4. The applicant approached TfNSW as a relevant stakeholder to consult on the proposed 
subject modification to Lots 5, 6, 7, & 8. Attachment A provides a correspondence table 
between TfNSW and the applicant to date. In response to the latest comments from the 
applicant dated 15/04/2021. TfNSW Response dated 1/4/21 Items 2 & 4 have been 
adequately addressed. TfNSW provides the following comments numbered based on 
TfNSW Response dated 1/4/21: 
 

Slip lane from NS Rd 1 to service Lot 5 – Item 1 
a. Comment 

TfNSW is supportive of attending a meeting with DPIE and the applicants to discuss 
the driveway access for Lot 5 on the NS Rd 1. 
   

b. Comment 
Drawing C013362_01-SK28 Revision A (Attachment B), indicates that the safe 
intersection site distance (SISD) is 151m. TfNSW notes that this SISD analysis was 
undertaken between a vehicle in Lane 2 and a vehicle in the auxiliary lane about to 
enter the site. The SISD should be measured between a vehicle in lane 1 and the 
first few meters of the auxiliary lane (which is considered the conflict point). Please 
note that SISD is measured along the carriageway from the approaching vehicle to 
the conflict point (see Austroads Guide to Road Design (AGRD) Part 4A 3.2.2). Any 
future analysis should reflect the abovementioned comments and be in line with 
Austroads guidelines. 
 



 
c. Comment 

It is understood that the future Southern Link Road (SLR) will have a signalised 
intersection to Bakers Lane in the location of the proposed bend on Bakers Lane. It 
is difficult to understand how the arrangement of a slip lane will work with the 
ultimate design. TfNSW is of the understanding that the start of the slip lane will be 
too close to the future signals and would likely lead to adverse safety outcomes. 

 
d. Comment 

The proposed internal road network of Lot 5 provides an access of left in only from 
NS Rd 1 which loops around to egress from the cul-de-sac located on the south east 
corner of the lot. The arrangement requires the largest vehicle to undertake a turning 
movement equal to a u-turn in order to loop around the warehouse. This will result 
in the vehicle being required to slow down to a slow speed in order for this movement 
to be achieved. It is unclear is the proposed deceleration lane length has taken this 
into consideration. 

 
Recommendation 
Whilst TfNSW is in general not supportive of any access to the NS Rd 1, TfNSW 
understands that it is desirable to have an internal loop network. Therefore it is 
suggested that should there be an access to Lot 5 to the NS Rd 1 it should be 
restricted to egress only (left out only) and located at the furthest point of the Lot 
away from the future SLR corridor. This will retain the loop road around the 
warehouse and remove the abovementioned (b-d) concerns. 

 
If you have any further questions, Ms Laura van Putten would be pleased to take your call on (02) 
8849 2480 or please email development.sydney@rms.nsw.gov.au. I hope this has been of 
assistance. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
Pahee Rathan 
Senior Land Use Assessment Coordinator 
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Attachment B 
 

 
 
 
 


